
  Physical Address:  501 South Main Street  

  Mailing Address:  PO Box 228    

Rhome, Texas 76078  

Telephone:  817‐636‐2462  

www.cityofrhome.com | citysecretary@cityofrhome.com  

 

   

"Crossroads to the Metroplex" 

Mayor 

Michelle Pittman 
Di Credico 
 
 
City Council 

Mayor Pro‐Tem,  
Place 3 
Elaine Priest 
 
Place 1 
Josh McCabe 
 
Place 2 
Kenny Crenshaw 
 
Place 4 
Sam Eason 
 
Place 5 
Leeanne 
Mackowski 
 
 
 
City 
Administrator 
Cynthia Northrop 
 
City Attorney 
Carvan Adkins 
 
City Secretary 
Shannon 
Montgomery 
 
Fire Chief 
Darrell Fitch 
 
Police Chief 
Sam Love 
 
Public Works 
Director 
Sean Densmore 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE RHOME CITY COUNCIL  
Meeting Date: Thursday, November 12, 2020 

Location:  VIA TELEPHONE CONFERENCE 
MEETING START TIME: 6:30 PM 

(Total Estimated Meeting Time 3 hrs 25 mins) 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN in accordance with order of the Office of the Governor issued March 16, 
2020, and most recently extended on November 6, 2020, the City Council of the City of Rhome will 
conduct its Regular Meeting scheduled for 6:30pm on Thursday, November 11, 2020, by telephone 
conference in order to advance the public health goal of limiting face‐to‐face meetings (also called 
“social distancing”) to slow the spread of the Coronavirus (COVID‐19).   

This meeting will be closed to in person attendance by the public. 

A temporary suspension of the Open Meetings Act to allow telephone or videoconference public 
meetings has been granted by Governor Greg Abbott. These actions are being taken to mitigate the 
spread of COVID‐19 by avoiding meetings that bring people into a group setting and in accordance 
with Section 418.016 of the Texas Government Code.  

Telephonic and videoconferencing capabilities will be utilized  to allow  individuals  to address  the 
Council.    Members  of  the  public  are  entitled  to  participate  remotely  via  GoToMeeting 
Teleconferencing.  Citizens may join the GoToMeeting:  

Regular City Council Meeting  
Thursday, November 12, 2020 6:30PM (CDT)  

You can also dial in using your phone.  
United States (Toll Free): 1 866 899 4679  
United States: +1 (571) 317‐3116  

Access Code: 491‐315‐925 

Members of the public who wish to submit written comments on a listed agenda item must submit 
their comments to citysecretary@cityofrhome.com no later than 4:00pm on day of meeting. 

The public will be permitted to offer public comments telephonically as provided by the agenda and 
as permitted by the presiding officer during the meeting.   

This meeting will be recorded and the recording will be available to the public in accordance with 
the Open Meetings Act upon written request.  

Call to Order and Establish a Quorum (Estimated 1 min) 

Regular Session – Old Business  

A. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding latest developments for COVID‐19 and 
mitigation efforts and actions within the City (Estimated 5 min) 

B. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding City of Newark Formal Request for City 
of Rhome to Relinquish Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) to Provide Water Service 
(Estimated 5 min) 



 
 

November 12, 2020 Council Meeting Agenda  Page 2 of 4 

C. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Final Report of Master Thoroughfare Plan (Estimated 10 min) 

D. Discussion and any necessary action regarding UTA’s Final Parks Master Plan (Estimated 5 min) 

E. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Final Report of Water Source Study (Estimated 10 min) 

F. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding Water Rate Study (Estimated 5 min) 

G. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Municipal Complex Project (Estimated 5 min) 

H. Discussion  and  any  necessary  action  regarding  Certificates  of  Appreciation  for  Committee Members  of  Capital 
Improvements  Advisory  Committee,  Parks  Master  Plan  Steering  Committee,  Master  Transportation  Steering 
Committee and Comprehensive Master Plan Steering Committee (Estimated 5 min) 

I. Discussion  and  any necessary  action  regarding Proclamation of Appreciation  for Council Member Mackowski  for 
Service to the City (Estimated 5 min) 

J. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Proclamation of Appreciation to Mayor Pittman Di Credico for Service 
to the City (Estimated 5 min) 

K. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Mayor Pittman Di Credico’s Farewell Address to the City (Estimated 10 
min) 

 

Canvassing and Swearing In 

L. Discussion and any necessary action regarding the Canvassing of the November 3, 2020 General Election (Estimated 
5 min) 

M. Discussion and any necessary action regarding the Canvassing of the November 3, 2020 Bond Election (Estimated 5 
min) 

N. Discussion  and  any  necessary  action  regarding  Certificates  of  Election,  Statements  of Office  an Oaths  of Office 
(Estimated 5 min) 

 
Public Presentations and Input (Estimated Time Varies) 
The Council is not permitted to take action on or discuss any presentations made to the Council at this time concerning an 
item not listed on the agenda.  The Council will hear comments during this designated time.  Request form, or email, must 
be submitted to the City Secretary, via email to citysecretary@cityofrhome.com, prior to 4:00pm to be recognized. 

Announcements from Mayor and Council Members (Estimated 2 min) 

O. Upcoming Events: 
 November 26, 2020 Council Meeting ‐ Cancelled  

 Thursday, November 26 and Friday, November 27, 2020 – City Offices Closed 
 

Monthly Staff Reports (Estimated 2 min) 

P. Departments: Administration, Building & Development, Fire Rescue, Municipal Court, Police, and Public Works    

Q. Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes 
 
Consent Agenda (Estimated 2 min) 
All items under this section are recommended for approval for the Consent Agenda.  These items are of a routine nature 
and require only brief deliberation by Council.  Council reserves the right to remove any item on the Consent Agenda for 
further deliberation. 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 2 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Meeting Agenda    Page 3 of 4 

R. Minutes of City Council Regular Session dated October 22, 2020 
 

Regular Session – New Business  

S. Discussion and any necessary action regarding updating authorized signatures for bank accounts (Estimated 5 min) 

T. Discussion and any necessary action regarding assigning one council member without bank signatory authority  to 
review monthly bank reconciliations (Estimated 5 min) 

U. Discussion and any necessary action regarding virtual meetings for the duration of Governor Abbott’s State of Disaster 
Declaration  due  to  COVID‐19  and  the  temporary  suspension  of  the  Open Meetings  Act  to  allow  telephone  or 
videoconference public meetings (Estimated 5 min) 

V. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Expectations for the upcoming Transition Period with newly Elected 
Officials (Estimated 10 min) 

W. Discussion and any necessary action regarding identifying CPA firm to review and analyze City’s Budget (Estimated 5 
min) 

X. Discussion and any necessary action regarding New Plan for office space for City Hall, Police Department, meeting 
facilities for City Council, Municipal Court, Planning & Zoning, Parks & Recreation as well as Community Center facilities 
upgrades (Estimated 10 min) 

Y. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding upcoming proposed Ordinance amendments (Estimated 5 min) 

Z. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Ordinance removing the two alternate positions on the Planning & 
Zoning Commission (Estimated 5 min) 

AA. Discussion and any necessary action regarding filling vacancies on the Planning & Zoning Commission (Estimated 5 
min) 

BB. Discussion and any necessary action regarding online Code of Ordinances services (Estimated 5 min) 

CC. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Solid Waste Collection Contract options for service (Estimated 5 min) 

DD. Discussion and any necessary action regarding contract for Permitting & Code Compliance Software (Estimated 5 min)  

EE. Discussion and any necessary action regarding contract for City Hall Copier/Printer (Estimated 5 min) 
 

Executive Session (Estimated 30 min) 

Pursuant  to  the  following  designated  section  of  the  Texas Government  Code, Annotated,  Chapter  551  (Texas Open 
Meetings Act), the Council may convene into executive session to discuss the following: 

FF. Section 551.071 Consultation with Attorney ‐ pending or contemplated litigation, settlement offer or to seek advice 
from attorney 

 Proposed split of City of Fort Worth Extra Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) within Rolling V Development 

 Amendment to Professional Services Agreement for Rolling V Development with PMB Capital 

 City of Newark Formal Request for City of Rhome to Relinquish Certificate of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) to 
Provide Water Service 

GG. Section  551.072  Deliberation  regarding  Real  Property  ‐  purchase,  exchange,  lease,  or  value  of  real  property  if 
deliberation in an open meeting would have detrimental effect on position of the governmental body in negotiations 
with a third person  

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 3 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Meeting Agenda    Page 4 of 4 

HH. Section  551.074  Personnel  –  discuss  appointment,  employment,  evaluation,  reassignment,  duties,  discipline  or 
dismissal of a public officer or employee, or hear complaint or charge against officer or employee in executive session 
unless officer or employee requests public 

II. Section 551.087 – Deliberations regarding Economic Development Negotiations – to discuss or deliberate regarding 
commercial or financial information that the City has received from a business prospect that the City seeks to locate, 
stay or expand in or near the City and with which the City is conducting economic development negotiations 

 

Reconvene into Regular Session  

JJ. Discussion and any necessary action as a result of Executive Session (Estimated 5 min) 
 

Future Agenda Items (Estimated 2 min) 

Adjourn (Estimated 1 min) 

A quorum of Planning & Zoning Commissioners may be present at this meeting and its members may participate in the 
discussions of the items on the agenda over which they have responsibilities or authority. 

A quorum of Parks & Recreation Board Members may be present at this meeting and its members may participate in 
the discussions of the items on the agenda over which they have responsibilities or authority. 

*Pursuant  to  the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551,  Section 551.071 of  the Texas Government Code,  the Council may 
convene into executive session at any time during the meeting if a need rises for the City Council to seek advice from the 
City Attorney concerning any item on this agenda, to discuss pending and contemplated litigation, or a settlement offer, 
or to discuss a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the City Council under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional 
Conduct of the State Board of Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551.   

The Council may vote and / or act upon each of the items listed in this Agenda.  Except for Public Presentation and Input 
and items in the Agenda designated as public hearing or otherwise designated for public input, there will be no public input 
during the course of this meeting without express authorization from the presiding officer.   

This  facility  is wheelchair  accessible  and  accessible  parking  spaces  are  available.    Requests  for  accommodations  or 
interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to the meeting.   Please contact City Hall at 817‐636‐2462 for further 
information.   

CERTIFICATION:  I do hereby certify  that  the above City Council Agenda was posted on  the designated bulletin board 
located at City Hall, 501 South Main Street, Rhome, Texas by 6:00 pm on the 9th day of November 2020. 

 
________________________________ 
Shannon Montgomery, TRMC, City Secretary 

I certify that the attached notice and agenda of items to be considered by the Rhome City Council was removed by me 
from the designated bulletin board located at City Hall, 501 South Main Street, Rhome, Texas, on the __________ day of 
____________________________, 2020.   

________________________________________________, Title: _________________________________________ 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 4 of 172



AGENDA ITEM - C 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 5 of 172



Master Thoroughfare
Plan and Capital

Improvements Plan

November 12, 2020

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 6 of 172



Outline

• Planning History
• Previous Meetings
• Master Thoroughfare Plan
• Capital Improvements Plan
• Next Steps

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 7 of 172



Planning History

• Previous City Planning Efforts
• US 287 60% Schematic
• Development Plans

• Rolling V
• Prairie Point

• MTP Committee Meetings
• Adjacent Adopted Thoroughfare Plans

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 8 of 172



Previous Meetings

• Master Thoroughfare Plan Committee
Meetings
1. Project Introduction
2. City Priority Discussions / Draft MTP
3. Final MTP and CIP

• Coordination Calls with TxDOT

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 9 of 172



Master Thoroughfare Plan

• Crown Point/Prairie Point
• Access via SH 114 from East

• Rolling V

• General Connectivity/Grid
• Future Access to NW City Limits

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 10 of 172



MTP Cross Sections

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 11 of 172



Capital Improvements Plan

Existing Issues
Access to Crown

Point/Prairie Point Area,
E of Railroad Tracks

Adequate Network to
Serve Future

Developments

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 12 of 172



Capital Improvements Plan
Project
Number Name Limits

1
2 S Main St BC Rhome Ave to Logan St
3 Virginia Ln Hickory St to Future Joy Rd
4 Virginia-SH 114 Connection Virginia Ln to SH 114
5 FM 3433 US 287 SBFR to S City Limits
6
7 Hickory-Virginia Connection Hickory St to Virginia Ln
8 Hickory St Virginia Ln to Future Joy Rd
9 Virginia Ln Future Joy Rd to Future CR 4733
10 CR 4651 US 287 SBFR to S City Limits
11 CR 4651 SH 114 to CR 4651
12 Pioneer St US 287 NBFR to Future Joy Rd
13

14 Joy Rd Pioneer St to SH 114
15 FM 3433-Ramhorn Hill Connection FM 3433 to Ramhorn Hill Rd

16 Ramhorn Hill Rd FM 3433-Ramhorn Hill Connection
to US 287 SBFR

SH 114 & US 287 Signalized Interchange

E 2nd St Quiet Zone
Future Growth and Development Driven

SH 114 & CR 4841 Signal

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 13 of 172



Capital Improvements Plan
Project

Number
Name Description Limits Cost Estimate*

1 SH 114 & US 287 Signalize Interchange N/A 1,000,000$
2 S Main St Road Diet BC Rhome Ave to Logan St 2,300,000$

3 Virginia Ln
Widening and New Three Lane

Undivided Minor Arterial
Hickory St to Future Joy Rd 9,900,000$

4
Virginia-SH 114

Connection
New Three Lane Undivided

Minor Arterial
Virginia Ln to SH 114 700,000$

5 FM 3433
Widening to Four-Lane Divided

Major Arterial
US 287 SBFR to S City Limits 12,800,000$

6 SH 114 & CR 4841 Signalize Intersection N/A 700,000$

7
Hickory-Virginia

Connection
New Three Lane Undivided

Minor Arterial
Hickory St to Virginia Ln 4,500,000$

8 Hickory St
Widening and New Three Lane

Undivided Minor Arterial
Virginia Ln to Future Joy Rd 8,300,000$

9 Virginia Ln
New Three Lane Undivided

Minor Arterial
Future Joy Rd to Future CR

4733
5,100,000$

10 CR 4651
Widening to a Three-Lane
Undivided Minor Arterial

US 287 SBFR to S City Limits 7,100,000$

11 CR 4651
New Three Lane Undivided

Minor Arterial
SH 114 to CR 4651 3,900,000$

12 Pioneer St
Widening to a Three-Lane
Undivided Minor Arterial

US 287 NBFR to Future Joy Rd 8,100,000$

13 E 2nd St Quiet Zone N/A 500,000$

14 Joy Rd
Widening and New Four Lane

Divided Major Arterial
Pioneer St to SH 114 16,400,000$

15
FM 3433-Ramhorn

Hill Connection
New Four Lane Major Arterial
and Three Lane Minor Arterial

FM 3433 to Ramhorn Hill Rd 18,200,000$

16 Ramhorn Hill Rd
Widening to a Three-Lane
Undivided Minor Arterial

FM 3433-Ramhorn Hill
Connection to US 287 SBFR

6,600,000$

City of Rhome CIP

Future Growth and Development Driven

*No ROW Costs Included

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 14 of 172



Next Steps

Next
Steps Impact FeesImpact Fees

Adopt Capital Improvements PlanCapital Improvements Plan

Adopt Master Thoroughfare PlanMaster Thoroughfare Plan

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 15 of 172



Questions/Comments?

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 16 of 172



Project
Number

Name Description Limits Cost Estimate*

1 SH 114 & US 287 Signalize Interchange N/A 1,000,000$
2 S Main St Road Diet BC Rhome Ave to Logan St 2,300,000$

3 Virginia Ln
Widening and New Three Lane

Undivided Minor Arterial
Hickory St to Future Joy Rd 9,900,000$

4
Virginia-SH 114

Connection
New Three Lane Undivided Minor

Arterial
Virginia Ln to SH 114 700,000$

5 FM 3433
Widening to Four-Lane Divided

Major Arterial
US 287 SBFR to S City Limits 12,800,000$

6 SH 114 & CR 4841 Signalize Intersection N/A 700,000$

7
Hickory-Virginia

Connection
New Three Lane Undivided Minor

Arterial
Hickory St to Virginia Ln 4,500,000$

8 Hickory St
Widening and New Three Lane

Undivided Minor Arterial
Virginia Ln to Future Joy Rd 8,300,000$

9 Virginia Ln
New Three Lane Undivided Minor

Arterial
Future Joy Rd to Future CR 4733 5,100,000$

10 CR 4651
Widening to a Three-Lane
Undivided Minor Arterial

US 287 SBFR to S City Limits 7,100,000$

11 CR 4651
New Three Lane Undivided Minor

Arterial
SH 114 to CR 4651 3,900,000$

12 Pioneer St
Widening to a Three-Lane
Undivided Minor Arterial

US 287 NBFR to Future Joy Rd 8,100,000$

13 E 2nd St Quiet Zone N/A 500,000$

14 Joy Rd
Widening and New Four Lane

Divided Major Arterial
Pioneer St to SH 114 16,400,000$

15
FM 3433-Ramhorn

Hill Connection
New Four Lane Major Arterial and

Three Lane Minor Arterial
FM 3433 to Ramhorn Hill Rd 18,200,000$

16 Ramhorn Hill Rd
Widening to a Three-Lane
Undivided Minor Arterial

FM 3433-Ramhorn Hill
Connection to US 287 SBFR

6,600,000$

City of Rhome CIP

Future Growth and Development Driven

*No ROW Costs Included

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 17 of 172



11’
parkway

5’
sidewalk

12’
drive lane

12’
center turn lane

12’
drive lane

5’
sidewalk

11’
parkway

10’
parkway

12’
drive lane

12’
drive lane

12’
drive lane

12’
drive lane

10’
parkway

7’
parkway

5’
shoulder

11’
drive lane

11’
drive lane

11’
drive lane

11’
drive lane

5’
shoulder

7’
parkway

7’
pkwy

5’
shoulder

11’
drive lane

11’
drive lane

12’
center turn lane

11’
drive lane

11’
drive lane

5’
shoulder

7’
pkwy

8’
parkway

5’
sidewalk

12’
drive lane

12’
drive lane

16’
median

12’
drive lane

12’
drive lane

5’
sidewalk

8’
parkway

13’
parkway

5’
shoulder

12’
drive lane

12’
drive lane

16’
median

12’
drive lane

12’
drive lane

5’
shoulder

13’
parkway

4’
pkwy

10’
shoulder

12’
drive lane

12’
drive lane

12’
drive lane

20’
median

12’
drive lane

12’
drive lane

12’
drive lane

10’
shoulder

4’
pkwy

14’
parkway

6’
sidewalk

8’
parking

12’
drive lane

12’
drive lane

8’
parking

6’
sidwalk

14’
parkway

18’
parkway

10’
parking

12’
drive lane

12’
drive lane

10’
parking

18’
parkway

6’
sidewalk

10’
drive lane

10’
drive lane

6’
sidewalk

Rhome MTP Cross Sections

v

Major Arterial - 5U Major Arterial - RuralMajor Arterial - Urban

Minor Arterial

Major Arterial

Principal Arterial Old Rhome

Minor Arterial - 3U Minor Arterial - RuralMinor Arterial - Urban

Old Rhome - Existing

Old Rhome - Widened Old Rhome - Constrained

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 18 of 172



!( !(

!(

Legend
ROADWAYS

WIDENING

OLD RHOME MAIN ST

NEW

!( INTERSECTIONS

MASTER THOROUGHFARE PLAN

EXISTING ROADS

RR

CITY BOUNDARY

ETJ

£¤81

£¤287

£¤81
£¤287

FM
 34

33

114
TEXAS

114
TEXAS

q
0 10.5

Miles

RHOME CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN

PIONEER

CR
 46

51

JO
Y

HICKORY

VIRGINIA!(2

!(5

!(10

!(11
!(8

!(3

!(13

!(12

!(14

!(7
!(1

!(15

!(16
RAMHORN

HILL

!(4

!(6

!(9

Project 
Number Name Limits 

1
2 Main St BC Rhome Ave to Logan St
3 Virginia Ln Hickory St to Future Joy Rd
4 Virginia-SH 114 Connection Virginia Ln to SH 114
5 FM 3433 US 287 SBFR to S City Limits
6
7 Hickory-Virginia Connection Hickory St to Virginia Ln
8 Hickory St Virginia Ln to Future Joy Rd
9 Virginia Ln Future Joy Rd to Future CR 4733
10 CR 4651 US 287 SBFR to S City Limits
11 CR 4651 SH 114 to CR 4651
12 Pioneer St US 287 NBFR to Future Joy Rd
13

14 Joy Rd Pioneer St to SH 114
15 FM 3433-Ramhorn Hill Connection FM 3433 to Ramhorn Hill Rd

16 Ramhorn Hill Rd
FM 3433-Ramhorn Hill Connection 

to US 287 SBFR

SH 114 & US 287 Signalized Interchange

E 2nd St Quiet Zone
Future Growth and Development Driven

SH 114 & CR 4841 Signal

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 19 of 172



!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

OLD TOWN RHOME DISTRICT

Legend
Intersections

!( SHORT TERM

!( LONG TERM

Master Thoroughfare Plan
FREEWAY

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

MAJOR ARTERIAL

MINOR ARTERIAL

EXISTING ROADS

TRAFFIC CALMING

OLD RHOME SECTIONS

RR

City Boundary

ETJ

£¤81

£¤287

£¤81
£¤287

FM
 34

33

114
TEXAS

CR 407

MAIN OLD MILL

2nd
BC RHOME

114
TEXAS

q
0 10.5

Miles

RHOME THOROUGHFARE PLAN

PIONEER

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 20 of 172



AGENDA ITEM - H 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 21 of 172



Parks Master Plan Steering Committee
Name
Tommie Eason

Debbie Kuhleman

Cathy Coffee

Kaitlyn Dilts

Candance Fitch

Jonathan de Friess

Tim McClure

Fabiola Valdez

Transportation Steering Committee
Name
Steve Knight

Mark Schluter

Mark Lorance

Community Improvements Advisory Committee (CIAC)
Name
Steve Knight

Ashley Majors

Roland Kuhleman

Thomas Cannon

Christy Nerren

Robert Coleman

Jo Ann Wilson

Phillip Herr

Mark Schluter

Comprehensive Master Plan Committee
Name
Steve Knight

Ashley Majors

Tommie Eason

Debbie Kuhleman

Fabiola Valdez

Christine Mahoney

Cynthia Hurd

Mark Schluter

Jonathan de Friess

Tim McClure

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 22 of 172



AGENDA ITEM - I 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 23 of 172



CITY OF RHOME, TEXAS 
 

Proclamation of Appreciation 
 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF RHOME, TEXAS, TO 

LEEANNE MACKOWSKI  
FOR HER SERVICE TO THE CITY OF RHOME 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rhome, Texas wish to express 

their  sincere  appreciation  to  Leeanne Mackowski  for her  invaluable  service  to 
the City of Rhome; and 

 
WHEREAS,  Leeanne Mackowski  served with  distinction  and  honor  as  a 

member of the City Council for four years; and 
 
WHEREAS, Leeanne Mackowski’s dedication and loyalty to Rhome and its 

citizens  has  been  instrumental  to  the  enhanced  welfare,  growth  and 
development of the City of Rhome. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the City Council of the City of 

Rhome,  Texas  hereby  express  their  heartfelt  appreciation  to  Council Member 
Leeanne Mackowski  for  her  unselfish  contributions  and  service  to  the  City  of 
Rhome and its citizens. 

 
Passed and approved by the City Council of the City of Rhome, Texas, this 

12th day of November 2020. 
 

     

    Michelle Pittman Di Credico, 
    Mayor  
     
    [SEAL] 
     
ATTEST:     
     
     

Shannon Montgomery, TRMC     
City Secretary     
 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 24 of 172



AGENDA ITEM - J 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 25 of 172



CITY OF RHOME, TEXAS 
 

Proclamation of Appreciation 
 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF RHOME, TEXAS, TO RECOGNIZE 

MICHELLE PITTMAN DI CREDICO  
FOR HER SERVICE TO THE CITY OF RHOME 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rhome, Texas wish to express 

their  sincere  appreciation  to  Michelle  Pittman  Di  Credico  for  her  invaluable 
service to the City of Rhome; and 

 
WHEREAS, Michelle Pittman Di Credico served with distinction and honor 

as a member of the City Council for three years and as Mayor for five years; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Michelle  Pittman  Di  Credico’s  dedication  and  loyalty  to 

Rhome and  its citizens has been  instrumental to the enhanced welfare, growth 
and development of the City of Rhome. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the City Council of the City of 

Rhome, Texas hereby express  their heartfelt appreciation  to Mayor Pittman Di 
Credico for her unselfish contributions and service to the City of Rhome and  its 
citizens. 

 
Passed and approved by the City Council of the City of Rhome, Texas, this 

12th day of November 2020. 
 

     

    Elaine Priest, 
    Mayor Pro Tem 
     
    [SEAL] 
     
ATTEST:     
     
     

Shannon Montgomery, TRMC     
City Secretary     
 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 26 of 172



AGENDA ITEM - L 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 27 of 172



 

 

CITY OF RHOME, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020‐20 

 
AN  ORDINANCE  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  CITY  OF  RHOME,  TEXAS, 
CANVASSING THE RETURNS, INCLUDING THE RETURNS OF ABSENTEE AND EARLY 
VOTING  BALLOTS  CAST  IN  CONNECTION  THEREWITH,  AND  DECLARING  THE 
RESULTS OF THE GENERAL ELECTION HELD ON NOVEMBER 3, 2020 RELATING TO 
THE ELECTION OF ONE (1) MAYOR FOR A TWO (2) YEAR TERM, ONE (1) COUNCIL 
MEMBER TO PLACE NO. 4 FOR A TWO (2) YEAR TERM, ONE (1) COUNCIL MEMBER 
TO  PLACE NO.  5  FOR  A  TWO  (2)  YEAR  TERM  TO  THE  CITY OF  RHOME  CITY 
COUNCIL;  PROVIDING  FOR  THE  CONFIRMATION  OF  VOTE  TABULATIONS; 
IDENTIFYING THE OFFICIALS ELECTED AND TERMS OF OFFICE; AUTHORIZING THE 
ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATE OF GENERAL ELECTION; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE 
OF THE CANVASS OF THE GENERAL ELECTION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, on February 13, 2020, the City Council of the City of Rhome, Texas (the “City”) 

passed and approved Ordinance No. 2020‐01, ordering a General Election  for  the purpose of 
electing one (1) Mayor for a two (2) year term, one (1) Council Member to Place No. 4 for a two 
(2) year term, and one (1) Council Member to Place No. 5 for a two (2) year term to the City of 
Rhome City Council to be held on May 2, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 1, 2020, the City Council postponed the General Election to November 

3, 2020 due to public health and safety concerns related to the novel coronavirus (COVID‐19); 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the General Election held on November 3, 2020, in the City was in conformity 
with the election laws of the State of Texas, and the result of General Election, including absentee 
and early voting results, have been certified and returned to the proper judges and clerks thereof; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the official returns of the General Election, including the returns of absentee 

and early voting ballots in connection therewith, and as such returns are related to the election 
of one (1) Mayor for a two (2) year term, one (1) Council Member to Place No. 4 for a two (2) 
year term, and one (1) Council Member to Place No. 5 for a two (2) year term to the City of Rhome 
City Council have been presented  to  the City Council acting  in  its  capacity as  the Canvassing 
Board; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the postponement of  the General Election  to November 3, 2020,  the duly 

elected officials for this Election will have shortened terms set to expire on the May 2022 Uniform 
Election Date;  

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 28 of 172



 

Ordinance 2020‐20    Page 2 of 9 

 

WHEREAS, the return of the General Elections, including the returns of absentee and early 
voting ballots, duly and legally made, showed that there were cast at the Election the following 
valid and legal votes: 
 

ELECTION  TOTAL BALLOTS CAST 

November 3, 2020 General Election  750 

   
WHEREAS, the returns of the General Election, including the returns of the absentee and 

early voting ballots, duly and legally made, showed that each of the candidates for the office of 
Mayor, Council Member Place No. 4, Council Member Place No. 5, Council Member Place No. 2, 
and Council Member Place No. 3 of the City of Rhome City Council received the following votes: 
 

CITY OF RHOME – MAYOR 
FOR A TWO (2) YEAR TERM 

 

 
 

NAME OF 
CANDIDATE 

TOTAL NUMBER 
OF ABSENTEE 

VOTES 
RECEIVED 

TOTAL NUMBER 
OF EARLY 

VOTING VOTES 
RECEIVED 

TOTAL NUMBER 
OF VOTES 

RECEIVED ON 
ELECTION DAY 

 
TOTAL NUMBER 

OF VOTES 
RECEIVED 

Jo Ann Wilson  14  309  47  370 

Michelle Pittman 
Di Credico 

13  287  35  335 

   
CITY OF RHOME – COUNCIL MEMBER PLACE NO. 4 

FOR A TWO (2) YEAR TERM 
 

 
 

NAME OF 
CANDIDATE 

TOTAL NUMBER 
OF ABSENTEE 

VOTES 
RECEIVED 

TOTAL NUMBER 
OF EARLY 

VOTING VOTES 
RECEIVED 

TOTAL NUMBER 
OF VOTES 

RECEIVED ON 
ELECTION DAY 

 
TOTAL NUMBER 

OF VOTES 
RECEIVED 

Sam Eason  14  351  43  408 

Ronnie Moore  9  205  31  245 

 
CITY OF RHOME – COUNCIL MEMBER PLACE NO. 5 

FOR A TWO (2) YEAR TERM 
 

 
 

NAME OF 
CANDIDATE 

TOTAL NUMBER 
OF ABSENTEE 

VOTES 
RECEIVED 

TOTAL NUMBER 
OF EARLY 

VOTING VOTES 
RECEIVED 

TOTAL NUMBER 
OF VOTES 

RECEIVED ON 
ELECTION DAY 

 
TOTAL NUMBER 

OF VOTES 
RECEIVED 

Ashley Majors  11  320  49  380 

Leeanne 
Mackowski 

11  223  25  259 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 29 of 172



 

Ordinance 2020‐20    Page 3 of 9 

 

  WHEREAS, pursuant to the Texas Election Code the candidate, for election to each Place 
on the Council, who receives the highest number of all votes cast for all the candidates for such 
Place at the election, shall be declared elected. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE  IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RHOME, 
TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1 
CONFIRMATION OF VOTE TABULATIONS 

 
The results of the General Election as related to the election of one (1) Mayor for a two 

year term, one (1) Council Member to Place No. 4 for a two (2) year term, one (1) Council Member 
to Place No. 5  for  a  two  (2)  year  term  to  the City of Rhome City Council,  as  canvassed  and 
tabulated above, reflect the expressed desires of the resident, qualified voters of the City. 
 

SECTION 2 
ELECTED OFFICIALS; TERMS OF OFFICE 

 
In accordance with the canvass and tabulation of the results of the General Election, the 

duly elected Mayor and Council Members elected on November 3, 2020, and the corresponding 
terms of office, subject to the taking of the oaths of office as required by State Law, are as follows: 
 

OFFICE  TERM EXPIRES  NAME 

Mayor  May 2022 Uniform Election Date  Jo Ann Wilson 

Council Member Place No. 4  May 2022 Uniform Election Date  Sam Eason 

Council Member Place No. 5  May 2022 Uniform Election Date  Ashley Majors 

 
SECTION 3 

ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATES OF ELECTION 
 
  The Mayor, or her designee,  is hereby authorized and directed  to execute and deliver 
Certificates of Election to the successful candidates elected at the General Election, as specified 
in Section 2 hereof. 
 

SECTION 4 
ISSUANCE OF CANVASS OF GENERAL ELECTION 

 
  The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Canvass of the 
General Election, copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit “A”,  in accordance with  the 
election laws of the State of Texas, and to take all other action necessary in connection therewith. 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 30 of 172



 

Ordinance 2020‐20    Page 4 of 9 

 

SECTION 5 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and publication 
as required by law, and it is so ordained. 
 

  PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Rhome, Texas, this the 
12th day of November 2020. 

 
 
   

  Jo Ann Wilson, 
  Mayor  
   
    [SEAL] 
ATTEST:   
   
   
   

Shannon Montgomery, TRMC   
City Secretary   
   
   
APPROVED TO AS FORM and LEGALITY: 
   
   
   

Carvan E. Adkins,   
City Attorney   
 
 
   

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 31 of 172



 

Ordinance 2020‐20    Page 5 of 9 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

CITY OF RHOME, TEXAS 
CANVASS OF GENERAL ELECTION 

 
  I,  the  undersigned Mayor  of  the  City  of  Rhome,  Texas,  and  Presiding  Officer  of  the 
Canvassing Authority of  the City, met  virtually on  the 12th of November 2020 with  the City 
Council of the City, sitting as the Canvassing Board to canvass the returns of the General Election 
held on November 3, 2020, as such returns related to the election of one (1) Mayor for a two 
year term, one (1) Council Member to Place No. 4 for a two (2) year term, one (1) Council Member 
to Place No. 5 for a two (2) year term to the City of Rhome City Council.  
 
  I DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the figures on the tally sheets hereto attached as Exhibit “A‐1” 
correspond with the figures on the returns. 
 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the City of 
Rhome, Texas to be affixed hereto, this the 12th day of November 2020. 
 
 
 
          _______________________________________________ 
          Mayor and Presiding Officer of the Canvassing Authority 
          Rhome, Texas 
 
[Seal]       
 
 
   

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 32 of 172



 

Ordinance 2020‐20    Page 6 of 9 

 

EXHIBIT A‐1 
 

CITY OF RHOME, TEXAS 
CANVASS OF GENERAL ELECTION TALLY SHEETS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
   

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 33 of 172



Precinct Jo
 A

nn
 W

ils
on

M
ic

he
lle

 P
it

tm
an

 D
i C

re
di

co

Ca
st

 V
ot

es

Ab
se

nt
ee

 V
ot

in
g 

Ba
llo

ts
 C

as
t

Ea
rly

 V
ot

in
g 

Ba
llo

ts
 C

as
t

El
ec

tio
n 

D
ay

 V
ot

in
g 

Ba
llo

ts
 C

as
t

To
ta

l B
al

lo
ts

 C
as

t

Re
gi

st
er

ed
 V

ot
er

s

Tu
rn

ou
t P

er
ce

nt
ag

e

24 368 335 703 33 626 89 748 1,103 67.82%

25 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 2 100.00%

Totals 370 335 705 33 628 89 750 1,105 67.87%

WISE COUNTY, TX

GENERAL AND SPECIAL ELECTION

11/3/2020

Page 66

Unofficial Results

Ballots Cast

32477

Precincts Reporting

25 of 25 = 100.00%

Canvass Report

Official

Run Time

Run Date

4:38 PM

11/10/2020

CITY OF RHOME MAYOR - Vote for None or One

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 34 of 172



Precinct Sa
m

 E
as

on

Ro
nn

ie
 M

oo
re

Ca
st

 V
ot

es

Ab
se

nt
ee

 V
ot

in
g 

Ba
llo

ts
 C

as
t

Ea
rly

 V
ot

in
g 

Ba
llo

ts
 C

as
t

El
ec

tio
n 

D
ay

 V
ot

in
g 

Ba
llo

ts
 C

as
t

To
ta

l B
al

lo
ts

 C
as

t

Re
gi

st
er

ed
 V

ot
er

s

Tu
rn

ou
t P

er
ce

nt
ag

e

24 407 244 651 33 626 89 748 1,103 67.82%

25 1 1 2 0 2 0 2 2 100.00%

Totals 408 245 653 33 628 89 750 1,105 67.87%

WISE COUNTY, TX

GENERAL AND SPECIAL ELECTION

11/3/2020

Page 67

Unofficial Results

Ballots Cast

32477

Precincts Reporting

25 of 25 = 100.00%

Canvass Report

Official

Run Time

Run Date

4:38 PM

11/10/2020

CITY OF RHOME PLACE 4 - Vote for None or One

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 35 of 172



Precinct A
sh

le
y 

M
aj

or
s

Le
ea

nn
e 

M
ac

ko
w

sk
i

Ca
st

 V
ot

es

Ab
se

nt
ee

 V
ot

in
g 

Ba
llo

ts
 C

as
t

Ea
rly

 V
ot

in
g 

Ba
llo

ts
 C

as
t

El
ec

tio
n 

D
ay

 V
ot

in
g 

Ba
llo

ts
 C

as
t

To
ta

l B
al

lo
ts

 C
as

t

Re
gi

st
er

ed
 V

ot
er

s

Tu
rn

ou
t P

er
ce

nt
ag

e

24 380 258 638 33 626 89 748 1,103 67.82%

25 0 1 1 0 2 0 2 2 100.00%

Totals 380 259 639 33 628 89 750 1,105 67.87%

WISE COUNTY, TX

GENERAL AND SPECIAL ELECTION

11/3/2020

Page 68

Unofficial Results

Ballots Cast

32477

Precincts Reporting

25 of 25 = 100.00%

Canvass Report

Official

Run Time

Run Date

4:38 PM

11/10/2020

CITY OF RHOME PLACE 5 - Vote for None or One

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 36 of 172



AGENDA ITEM - M 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 37 of 172



 

 

CITY OF RHOME, TEXAS 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020‐10 

 
A RESOLUTION  canvassing  the  returns  and declaring  the  results of  the bond 
election held November 3, 2020 

 
WHEREAS, an election was held in the City of Rhome, Texas on the 3rd day of November, 

2020,  for  the  purpose  of  submitting  a  certain  proposition  for  the  issuance  of  bonds  to  the 
resident electors of the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is hereby found and determined that notice of the election was duly given 

in the form, manner and time required by law, and said election was in all respects legally held 
and conducted  in accordance with applicable  laws of  the State of Texas and  the proceedings 
calling and governing the holding of such election; and 

 
WHEREAS, the returns of said election have been duly and legally made and submitted 

to the City Council for canvassing, and a tabulation of the returns for the polling place and for 
early  voting,  as  canvassed  and  tabulated  by  this  governing  body  and  shown  in  Exhibit  A 
attached  hereto,  reflect  that  the  total  sum  of  votes  counted  “FOR”  and  “AGAINST”  the 
proposition submitted is as follows: 

 
BOND PROPOSITION A 

 
“THE  ISSUANCE  OF  NOT  TO  EXCEED  $4,750,000  CITY  OF  RHOME,  TEXAS, 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FOR A MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT COMPLEX AND 
THE LEVYING TAX IN PAYMENT THEREOF” 
 

“FOR” 
 
“AGAINST” 

320  votes 
 
364   votes 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RHOME, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1: All of the recitals contained  in the preamble of this resolution are found 

to  be  true  and  are  adopted  as  findings  of  fact  by  this  governing  body  and  as  part  of  its 
judgment. 
 

SECTION 2: It is further found and determined that the results of the election are as 
canvassed  and  tabulated  in  the  preamble  hereof  and  in  Exhibit  A  attached  hereto,  and  a 
majority of the electors voting at said election voted against Proposition A. 
 

SECTION 3: The  City  Secretary  is  hereby  authorized  and  directed  to  make  the 
appropriate  entries  of  information  appearing  in  the  tabulation  of  precinct  results  shown  in 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 38 of 172



 

Resolution 2020‐10    Page 2 of 4 

Exhibit A attached hereto  in  the election  register maintained by  the City  in accordance with 
provisions of Section 67.006 of the Election Code. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Rhome, Texas, this the 12th 

day of November 2020. 
 
 

   

  Jo Ann Wilson, 
  Mayor  
   
    [SEAL] 
ATTEST:   
   
   
   

Shannon Montgomery, TRMC   
City Secretary   
   
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
   
   
   

Carvan E. Adkins,   
City Attorney   
 
 
   

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 39 of 172



 

Resolution 2020‐10    Page 3 of 4 

EXHIBIT A 
 

TABULATION OF VOTES 
RE:  BOND ELECTION 

HELD NOVEMBER 3, 2020 
   

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 40 of 172



Precinct Fo
r

A
ga

in
st

Ca
st

 V
ot

es

Ab
se

nt
ee

 V
ot

in
g 

Ba
llo

ts
 C

as
t

Ea
rly

 V
ot

in
g 

Ba
llo

ts
 C

as
t

El
ec

tio
n 

D
ay

 V
ot

in
g 

Ba
llo

ts
 C

as
t

To
ta

l B
al

lo
ts

 C
as

t

Re
gi

st
er

ed
 V

ot
er

s

Tu
rn

ou
t P

er
ce

nt
ag

e

24 320 362 682 33 626 89 748 1,103 67.82%

25 0 2 2 0 2 0 2 2 100.00%

Totals 320 364 684 33 628 89 750 1,105 67.87%

WISE COUNTY, TX

GENERAL AND SPECIAL ELECTION

11/3/2020

Page 69

Unofficial Results

Ballots Cast

32477

Precincts Reporting

25 of 25 = 100.00%

Canvass Report

Official

Run Time

Run Date

4:38 PM

11/10/2020

CITY OF RHOME PROPOSITION A - Vote FOR or AGAINST

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 41 of 172



AGENDA ITEM - P 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 42 of 172



  Physical Address:  501 South Main Street  

Mailing Address:  PO Box 228   

Rhome, Texas 76078 

Telephone:  817‐636‐2462  

www.cityofrhome.com | citysecretary@cityofrhome.com   

 

"Crossroads to the Metroplex" 

Administration by the Numbers – October 2020 

Bank Statement Balances 

Account Name 
Balances as of 

October 31, 2019 
Balances as of 

October 31, 2020 

2017 Tax Note, Series 2017  $234,934.26   $42,927.69  

2019 Bond Checking  $9,835.79   $642.79  

Fire Dept Checking  $99,102.08   $110,936.50  

Fire Dept Savings – Quarterly Statement  $27,447.64   $40,443.41  

General Fund Checking  $44,350.41   $74,806.32  

General Fund Savings  $191,998.15   $166,672.17  

Hotel Motel Tax  $54,437.26   $74,652.15  

Interest & Sinking  $20,243.78   $149,308.29  

LOGIC  $1,222,754.61   $1,148,832.94  

Meter Deposits  $89,078.25   $91,404.96  

Muni Court Security  $28,569.25   $31,419.19  

Muni Court Tech Fund  $16,284.30   $20,962.50  

Muni Court Title 7  $4,532.67   $4,533.49  

Parks & Recreation Checking  $18,509.71   $21,660.91  

Payroll ZBA Account    $0.00  

Police Grant Account  $2,065.54   $2,835.80  

Police Seizure Funds  $4,342.79   $100.40  

Rhome Beautification Fund    $116.00  

Rolling V  $22,904.86   $22,904.86  

TEXSTAR  $1,221,906.74   $1,144,477.11  

W/S I&S Fund  $3,428.77   $3,428.77  

Water & Sewer Checking  $260,269.09   $239,410.99  

TOTAL  $3,581,069.67  $3,392,477.24  

 
  

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 43 of 172



Administration by the Numbers – October 2020    Page 2 of 5 

September Sales Tax Revenue Received: $75,745.64 

Month 
Received  2015  2016  2017  2018  2019  2020 

January  $29,441.65   $30,387.32   $31,401.41   $61,139.42   $49,719.73   $62,703.14  

February  $39,262.62   $41,866.33   $47,000.93   $56,030.60   $67,180.35   $81,459.72  

March  $36,118.36   $33,776.77   $40,837.42   $46,156.35   $66,853.76   $73,488.63  

April   $21,352.29   $30,915.49   $33,361.07   $38,766.96   $55,814.51   $61,205.25  

May  $35,929.48   $40,225.24   $49,987.00   $51,754.08   $52,022.35   $61,014.98  

June  $36,473.96   $32,353.93   $43,940.94   $42,538.20   $60,712.41   $71,595.88  

July  $32,549.55   $33,975.41   $49,928.81   $46,649.99   $56,382.32   $66,189.23  

August  $38,499.24   $37,782.39   $48,878.03   $52,698.74   $89,739.58   $81,658.50  

September  $33,854.56   $34,844.61   $30,263.17   $52,300.18   $77,788.90    $75,181.40   
October  $34,539.68   $36,761.46   $41,715.19   $55,994.48   $83,748.34    $75,745.64  

November  $38,667.86   $39,909.64   $49,257.27   $67,076.39   $75,077.06     

December  $36,385.65   $37,325.73   $55,857.75   $56,827.29   $87,313.44     

 

 

 

  

$0.00

$10,000.00

$20,000.00

$30,000.00

$40,000.00

$50,000.00

$60,000.00

$70,000.00

$80,000.00

$90,000.00

$100,000.00

Sales Tax Revenue Received

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 44 of 172



Administration by the Numbers – October 2020    Page 3 of 5 

Ordinances Passed – October  

2020‐19  AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
RHOME BY GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A CARPORT FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 321 REDBUD STREET; PROVIDING FOR THE AMENDMENT OF THE OFFICIAL 
ZONING MAP TO REFLECT SUCH CHANGES; PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE 
CUMULATIVE OF ALL ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A PENALTY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS 
CLAUSE;  PROVIDING  A  SEVERABILITY  CLAUSE;  PROVIDING  FOR  PUBLICATION  IN  THE 
OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

No Resolutions Passed during October 

Year to Date Record Requests (January 2020 – October 2020) 

Month 
Number of 
Requests 

January   32 

February   24 

March   19 

April   10 

May   9 

June   14 

July   28 

August   44 

September   23 

October  13 
 

 

 

September Open Records Requests 

Requests Received  12 

Pending / Open    1 

Sent for Attorney General Opinion (RFO)  0 

Complete / Closed  11 

Requestor Fees  4.10 

Approximate Staff Time   435 minutes / approximately 7.25 hours 

Approximate Supply Cost  $4.10 

Approximate Staff Cost  $191.10 
 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Number of Requests

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 45 of 172



Administration by the Numbers – October 2020    Page 4 of 5 

ORR 
Number  Requestor 

Date 
Rec'd 

Due 
Date  Request Description 

Time 
in 

Mins 
Release 
 Date 

2020‐
203 

Chris Pratt  10/1  10/16  I would like to receive information from permits for 
residential new construction.  I am interested in: 
address, permit number, builder/contractor name, 
subdivision, date permit was issued, and any value, 
square footage information or floor plan name or 
number for permits issued for residential new 
construction from September 1, 2020 ‐ September 
30, 2020.  

30  10/15 

2020‐
204 

Rian 
Rahimi 

10/5  10/20  I am requesting the associated documents with the 
agenda item about Rolling V Ranch on the P&Z 
meeting on Oct. 5th. The preliminary plat along 
with any other documents would be great.  

30  10/15 

2020‐
205 

Carolyn 
Lewis 

10/6  10/21  I understand that the Rhome Planning & Zoning 
commission discussed preliminary plats for the 
Rolling V Ranch at last evening’s meeting.  Would it 
be possible for you to send me the plats discussed? 

15  10/15 

2020‐
205.5 

Jo Ann 
Wilson 

10/7  10/22  please Provide me a copy of the open records 
request for my file 

15  10/19 

2020‐
206 

Haley 
Samsel 

10/13  10/27  I am writing to request any fire department or 
emergency management incident reports related to 
incidents at natural gas production sites in Rhome, 
including reports of explosions, gas leaks, pipeline 
breaks or other incidents that required a fire 
department/emergency management response. 
These documents should be dated between January 
1, 2018 and October 10, 2020. 

30  10/26 

2020‐
207 

Brooke 
Drillette 

10/13  10/27  I was wanting to request the rates and hauling and 
disposal waste contract for the city. 

15  10/20 

2020‐
208 

Ashley 
Majors 

10/13  10/27  police pay  60  10/21 

2020‐
209 

Deborah 
BeCraft 

10/14  10/28  Under open records I would like to request the 
minutes of the council meeting that had the 
discussion on appointing 2 alternates to P&Z.  This 
would be the meeting that Councilman Eason has 
referred to in the last 2 meetings, when they first 
started appointing alternates.  Please have these 
meetings on a thumb drive. 

60  10/26 

2020‐
210 

Ashley 
Majors 

10/14  10/28  Can I have an open records request for the original 
contract with Rolling V and the new contract with 
Rolling V 

  
WITHDRAWN  

2020‐
211 

Greg 
Roemer 

10/15  10/29  Is there any possibility you can share with me the 
results from yesterday’s public bid opening??  

60  10/26 

2020‐
212 

Krista 
Finnegan 

10/19  11/2  I am writing to request the Rolling V Ranch plat   15  10/21 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 46 of 172



Administration by the Numbers – October 2020    Page 5 of 5 

ORR 
Number  Requestor 

Date 
Rec'd 

Due 
Date  Request Description 

Time 
in 

Mins 
Release 
 Date 

2020‐
213 

Patricia 
Mitchell 

10/20  11/3  Please provide substantiating documents that show 
receipt of this $1M, the escrow account balance 
showing the $1M as well as the city's refund of the 
$1M. 

60  11/3 

2020‐
214 

Greg 
Saunders 

10/27  11/10  I am requesting a copy of the City of Rhome 
ordinance which annexed the area adjacent to the 
north side of Chisolm Creek Parkway. 

45    

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 47 of 172



 
  Physical Address:  501 South Main Street  

Mailing Address:  PO Box 228   

Rhome, Texas 76078 
Telephone:  817‐636‐2462  

www.cityofrhome.com|permits@cityofrhome.com 

 
 

Building and Development‐ October 2020 
Permits Issued:  20 

Electric Permit:   

Sign Permit:   

Plumbing Permit:    

Building Permit:  2 

Moving Structure:  18 

         

Type:  Address:  Assoc. Permits:  Cost:   

Building Permit   321 Redbud  Carport  181.50   

Building Permit  210 Third St   Building‐ Homestead  220.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114       

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

Moving Structure Permit  6550 E 114    100.00   

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 48 of 172



  Physical Address:  501 South Main Street  

Mailing Address:  PO Box 228   

Rhome, Texas 76078 
Telephone:  817‐636‐2462  

www.cityofrhome.com|codeenforcement@cityofrhome.com 

 

Violation  # Cases 
Opened 

# Cases 
Closed 

# Cases 
Carried 
over 
from last 
Month 

Closed Case Addresses  Open Case Addresses 

Temporary 
Signs 

2  2  0  City Wide 
 

High 
Grass/Weeds 

11  9  3   1349, 120 BC Rhome 1109 Sunrise, 
1104 Sunrise, 220 Oak Ct, 1223 
Alliance, 0 E logan, 299 E Aurora, 255 
E Aurora, 

401 Hickory, 135 Virginia, 300 
BC Rhome, 130 Morris, 0 
Main, 604 Troxell, 0 N third,  
160 Dogwood, 500 Randall, 
601 Old Mill, 1311 Speedway,  

Junk Vehicle 
 

2  2 
 

1109 Sunrise, 1204 Alliance 

Junk        160 Dogwood, 601 Old Mill   

Fence      1  224 Kingsway CT.   

Parking on 
sidewalk 

1 
     

117 Hampton CT 

______________________________________________________ 

Total Cases Opened…………………………. 13   Total Resolved………13    

 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 49 of 172



 

1 | P a g e  

 

RHOME FIRE RESCUE  
Duty    Honor    Compassion    Service 
261 N. School Road - P.O. Box 228 - Rhome, Texas 76078  
817-636-2001                    station17@rhomefirerescue.com 

October 2020 – Council Fire Report 

Calls for Service Monthly:   

  Jan  Feb  March  April  May  June  July  Aug  Sept  Oct  Nov  Dec 

2020  57  43  44  47  34  55  59  54  53  69  ‐‐‐  ‐‐‐ 

2019  55  41  57  41  51  56  54  45  56  47  55  46 

 

Calls for Service by type:  

 
EMS  MVA 

Structure 
Fires 

Grass 
Fires 

Vehicle 
Fires 

Fire 
Invest. 

Fire 
Alarms 

Gas 
Leak 

Road 
Hazard 

Lift 
Assist 

Other 

Oct. 2020  30  10  4  4  3  0  0  1  3  9  5 

Year‐To‐Date  229  102  28  34  11  24  5  5  9  36  32 

 

Call Locations 

 
City   County 

Auto/Mutual Aid 
Given 

Auto/Mutual Aid 
Received 

Cancelled  Weather Watch 

Oct. 2020  29  40  9  2  2  0 

Year‐To‐Date  248  272  54  15  18  1 

Numbers above are approximate since the official numbers have not been finalized 

Membership 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Current Members – 17 

#  Area  +/‐ 

5  City  ‐ 

5  In District  +1 

7  Out of District  +3 

EMS Certification ‐ 12 

5  EMT Basic   ‐ 

7  Paramedics  ‐ 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 50 of 172



4 new members going through 6‐month probationary period. All 4 members have finished their initial 

requirements of: Courage to be safe, NIMS (100, 200, 700, 800), Traffic Incident Safety and CPR 

Certification. Members have currently finished Fire Fighter introduction and getting checked off on skills.  

 

Events 

 

 Santa Sighting – December 7 and December 14. Route details coming soon.  

Command Staff 

 

 Command Staff working on gathering required information for official ISO Survey in January 

2021.  

 Approved for a Texas Forestry Service grant for Personal Protective Equipment. Working on 

fulfilling grant based off the restrictions set up for the grant.  

 Continue to update, Covid‐19 Standard Operating Guidelines. Included in guidelines are: 

o Response to Medical calls when Covid‐19 is suspected.  

o Precautions and questions on Medical calls when pre‐screening questions to Covid‐19 

are negative. 

o Equipment and Apparatus Decontamination on all Emergency responses.  

o Handling Social Distancing with Department Personnel. 

  Guidelines established in conjunction with  

o CDC Guidelines 

o Medical Director 

o Wise County EMS 

 Process of completing awarded State grants that had deadlines extended.  

 CARES Act approval and disbursement. 

o Bunker Gear – Additional gear to use when assigned gear must be deconned due to 

contamination. Based on TCFP guidelines.  

o Extractor and Dryer – A means to thoroughly clean gear when dirty or contaminated. 

Provides a means for longevity due to proper cleaning procedures.  

o LUCAS Device – Allows for less contact with patient during CPR. 

o Uniforms ‐ Additional uniforms to use when assigned uniforms need to be cleaned or 

deconned due to contamination. 

 

Equipment 

 Updated safety vest used on emergency scenes when on the highway. 

 New fire hose ordered to replace out of service hose and to have replacement hose for 

apparatus after a fire.  

 2 low pressure nozzles to go with new hose. 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 51 of 172



 

3 | P a g e  

 

RHOME FIRE RESCUE  
Duty    Honor    Compassion    Service 
261 N. School Road - P.O. Box 228 - Rhome, Texas 76078  
817-636-2001                    station17@rhomefirerescue.com 

 Adult, child, and infant CPR training mannequins.   

 

Station 

 Closed to non‐essential personnel. 

 

Apparatus 

 

 

Future Projects 

 Inside personal lockers for members.  

 Wildland Brush Truck.  

 Motion stop sensors for garage doors to improve safe vehicle operations in and out along with 

the main benefit of safety of members and visitors entering and exiting the building.  

My door is as always open if you have any questions, 

Darrell Fitch 

Fire Chief 

Rhome Fire Rescue 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 52 of 172



City of Rhome
Municipal Court Council Report
From 10/1/2020 to 10/31/2020

11/3/2020 12:29 PM

6

377

5238064

$392.25$6,150.95 $15,021.87$8,555.33 $378.63

0

377

2403

0

79

0 00

0

74376 0

City Ordinance

Collections

DeferredDriver SafetyDismissedNon-Cash CreditPaid

Building SecurityCourt Costs FinesState Fees Tech Fund

FTAs

Omni

OtherParkingPenal

Scofflaw

Traffic

Jury AppealBench

VPTAs

ClosedIssued Served

Violations by Type
Total
112

Financial
Total

$30,499.03

Warrants
Total
450

FTAs/VPTAs
Total

0

Dispositions
Total
109

Trials & Hearings
Total

0

Omni/Scofflaw/Collection
Total
754

1

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 53 of 172



 

 

 
 
 
To: Cynthia Northrop-City Administrator 

From: Sean Densmore- Director of Public Works 

Date: November 6, 2020  

Re: October Monthly Report  

Reporting: 

1) Monthly TCEQ Reporting: GW/PWMOR  

2) Monthly TCEQ Reporting: Wastewater MOR 

3) Monthly Coliform Test 

4) Three Year Lead and Copper Report 

 

Equipment Issues: 

1) Level Sensor at Well 5. Had to send replacement sensor back. Waiting on manufacture to 

resend replacement. 

2) Well #4 has lost production. scheduling a well company to come pull the well. 

Maintenance: 

1) Normal preventative maintenance was performed for the water system. 

2) Normal preventative maintenance was performed for the wastewater system 

3) Monthly preventative collection system maintenance to wastewater collection line 

4) Bulk trash weekend 10/17 & 10/24 was very successful with over 50 loads both 

weekends. All three dumpsters were full by 12 noon. 

 
Water: 

 

1) Updated proper backflow device testing documents and record keeping 

2) Sent Notification out to businesses to have their back‐flow device inspected per TCEQ 

requirements. 

3) Updating the City’s Water monitoring plan and Nitrification Action Plan 

"Crossroads to the Metroplex" 

501 Main St. ‐ P.O. Box 228. Rhome, Texas 76078 

Telephone:  817‐636‐2462 / Metro: 817‐638‐2758 

Fax: 817‐636‐2465 ‐ www.cityofrhome.com 

© 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 54 of 172



4) Completed Lead and Copper Samples in September‐ Notification of result have been 

submitted to the 10 customers and TCEQ. 

5) Adjusting Water Storage capacity to reduce water aging 

6) Repaired meter leak at 1308 Renshaw 

7) Repaired water leak due to contractors hitting the line at Chisholm creek/Cheyenne Trl.  

Wastewater: 

1. East Plant; Flow‐ .95 Million Gallons Total, Average 46,500‐GPD, Rain‐ 1.75 inches, 

Temperature 34 degrees F to 74 degrees F, average Cl2 residual‐ 2.00 mg/l, at this writing no 

violations recorded. Permitted flow for East Plant is 100,000 GPD 

 

2. West Plant; Flow‐ .88 Million Gallons Total, Average‐ 39,955 GPD, Rain‐ 1.50 inches, 

Temperature‐ 35 degrees F to 76 degrees F, average Cl2 residual‐ 2.33 Mg/l, at this writing no 

violations recorded. Permitted flow for West Plant is 150,000 GPD 

Streets/Parks: 

1) Normal preventative maintenance – Parks‐ mowed, trash pickup and ant killer 

2) Installed Engineered wood safety fiber for playground areas  

3) Ellis road repairs‐Contractor will moving the week of November 2nd to install asphalt to 

complete the project. 

4) County assistants on road repairs on Alliance Blvd‐ Percent 3 will move in the week of 

November 9th to start on the first phase of repairs from the entrance of Alliance Blvd to 

Sunrise Ave. 

5) Submit approval for replacement of the flag poles on Alliance Blvd. Flag poles were 

damaged by a contractor moving a manufactured home  

Building Maintenance:  

1)   City buildings sprayed for insects 

2)   Installed weather stripping on the Community Center doors  

3)   Installed smoke detector in city buildings 

 

Construction:  

1) East WWTP Equalization Basin project‐ Notice to proceed has been issued for  

2) Construction training through NCTCOG 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 55 of 172



Engineering:  

1) Kimley Horn – Expansion to east wastewater plant  

2) Kimley‐Horn‐ Long Term Water Supply and Rate Study‐ Staff and engineers meet with 

Upper trinity Water District about long term water supply availability.  

Development: 

Administration: 

1) Daily water production reporting 

2) Daily chlorine reporting 

3) Daily wastewater production reporting 

4) Daily wastewater chlorine reporting 

5) Daily employee production reporting 

Citizen Issue: None 

New Employees:  none 

 

If you would like to discuss any items noted above please do not hesitate to contact me; 

Sean Densmore 

Public Works Director 

______________________________________________ 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                           

 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 56 of 172



 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 57 of 172



AGENDA ITEM - Q 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 58 of 172



  501 South Main | PO Box 228   

Rhome, Texas 76078 
Telephone:  817‐636‐2462 

www.cityofrhome.com | citysecretary@cityofrhome.com  
 

 

"Crossroads to the Metroplex"© 

MINUTES OF RHOME SPECIAL PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING  
Meeting Date: MONDAY, OCTOBER 5, 2020  
Meeting Location:  VIA VIRTUAL MEETING 

Meeting Start Time: 6:00pm 
 

Call to Order and Establish a Quorum 

Chair Knight called the meeting to order at 6:04pm and called roll to establish a quorum of Commissioners 
present.   

Commissioners Present: 
Chair Steve Knight  Commissioner Christy Nerren 
Commissioner Thomas Cannon  Alternate 1 Kristi King 
Commissioner Robert Coleman  Alternate 2 Jo Ann Wilson 

City Staff Present:
City Administrator Cynthia Northrop  City Secretary Shannon Montgomery 
City Attorney Carvan Adkins   

Chair Knight thanked Ashely Majors for her service on the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

City Attorney Adkins wanted to remind everyone,  it  is the duty of each member of the Commission to 
evaluate their own potential conflicts and that the City does have a conflict of  interest provision  in  its 
Code of Ordinances.  Adkins continued by reading an except of the provision, which says “no officer and 
that would include members of the P&C and alternates shall participate in a vote or decision on a matter 
involving a business entity or real property in which the officer has a substantial interest”.   

If it is a reasonably foreseeable, then an action in the matter would confer an economic benefit on the 
business  entity or  the  real property.   And  that  is  essentially quoting Chapter 171 of  the  Texas  Local 
Government Code, which basically says the same thing, and in the event, you do have a conflict.  Both the 
code and  the state statute say  that you shall abstain  from participating or,  I should say,  from  further 
participation in the matter and that would mean, including any discussions today or obviously, voting on 
the matter.    It is the obligation of the committee members to make that conflict known, and there is an 
affidavit that you're required to prepare to give to the city, to let them know that you have a conflict. 

City Administrator Northrop asked Carvan to address the fact that our Ordinance does not require public 
hearings for preliminary or final plats, so the City did not have to publish notice nor send out 200 feet 
notices.  Regardless, if there is a public hearing or a letter that goes out, someone does not absolve the 
conflict of interest if a notice is mailed or a public notice is published. 

Adkins agreed, the 200 foot letter is just a shorthand way of notifying you of a conflict of interest, so when 
you get  that  letter,  it pretty much  tells you  that  the courts are going  to determine  that you have an 
economic interest in the outcome of the vote, and that you probably need to file your affidavit and cease 
participating and/or voting on the matter. 

City Attorney Adkins stated the members of the Commission have the right to call him and ask him,  in 
advance.  Adkins reminded the Commission that it is their duty, under both the Code and the Statute, to 
make  their decision  in advance of the meeting and advised the Commission,  if they think  they have a 
conflict. Mr. Adkins stated the best time is to call ahead of the meeting and give both he and you time to 
evaluate whether it is truly a conflict.  Adkins’ best advise to the Commission, in an abundance of caution, 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 59 of 172



 

October 5, 2020 Planning & Zoning Commission Minutes    Page 2 of 5 

is to assume that you do have a conflict and that you should abstain from participating; there is really no 
reason to take the risk and participate, if you have not had a chance to discuss with him. 

Chair Knight announced that Alternate 1 Kristi King will be seated for this meeting. 

Chair Knight read a statement, “I as chair of the Rhone Planning and Zoning Commission, would  like to 
make a statement concerning the confusion surrounding the recent actions of this Commission.  Having 
been tasked by our own City Council to review the City of Rhome’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 14 Zoning, 
and our Comprehensive Plan and make recommendations to them of any changes we see and to update 
both to better reflect the current needs and wants of the citizens of Rhome.   

We are guided by City Staff to first have a more current plan created with the help of professionals and 
the input of the citizens of Rhome.  This process took time, but with the new Plan, we had a guide of how 
the City wanted to develop and grow.  We decided to start with looking at the downtown area.  We saw 
that there was an overlay created back in 2004, describing a zoning classification named Old Town Rhome.  
This  also  had  a  map  created  with  boundaries  that  were  difficult  to  distinguish,  that  we  also  felt 
encompassed an area larger than intended or needed.   

We, as a group of Commissioners, from several areas of Town, worked to redraw the boundaries to make 
better sense of what our new Comprehensive Plan describes as an area of Town that would consist of a 
mixed‐use area and  single‐family homes.  Along with retail and commercial businesses that would best fit 
in this part of Town and to include walking and meeting areas, small parks, adequate parking and lighting.  
In other words, the feel of what Old Town remains to the citizens who live here.   

It was never the intention of this Commission to attempt to rename anything but a classification as a zone. 
On paper,  for the purpose of promoting the area when  interested businesses or people  inquired about 
locating with  it within this area of Town, to better align  it with the verbiage contained within the New 
Comprehensive Plan, it was never the intent to rename Old Town Rhome.   

With this said,  I plan to continue, with the help of my current commissioners and our City Council, City 
Staff, and engineer to update the content within our zoning ordinance. 

Thank you very much.” 

 
Public Presentations and Input  

Rick King, 207 Cheyenne Trail North, Rhome, Texas addressed the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 

Regular Agenda – Old Business  

A. Discussion  and  any  necessary  action  regarding  the Minutes  of  September  14,  2020 Planning & 
Zoning Commission Special Session  

Motion made by Commissioner Cannon, seconded by Commissioner Nerren, to approve the Minutes of 
September 14, 2020 Planning & Zoning Commission Special Session as presented.   

Chair Knight asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Chair Knight:  Aye 
Commissioner Nerren:  Aye 
Commissioner Cannon:  Aye 
Commissioner Coleman:  Aye 
Alternate Commissioner King:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 60 of 172



 

October 5, 2020 Planning & Zoning Commission Minutes    Page 3 of 5 

Chair Knight announced that Commissioner Cannon recused himself from Agenda Items B & C; Alternate 
2 Commissioner Wilson would sit in on these agenda items. 

Public Hearing 

B. Rhome Planning & Zoning Commission  to  conduct a Public Hearing  to  consider a  request  for a 
Carport at legal property being Legal: Acres: 0.209, Lot: 2, Blk: 1, Subd: ROLLING HILLS ADDITION also 
known as 321 Redbud, Rhome, Texas 76078 

Chair Knight opened the Public Hearing at 6:19pm. 

City Secretary Montgomery read the only response received: 

 James Humphries, PO Box 447, Boyd, Texas – IN FAVOR 

Property owner Randy Murdock was available for questions. 

Chair Knight closed the Public Hearing at 6:22pm. 
 

Regular Agenda – New Business  

C. Discussion and any necessary action considering a recommendation to Council regarding a request 
for a Carport at property being described as Legal: Acres: 0.209, Lot: 2, Blk: 1, Subd: ROLLING HILLS 
ADDITION also known as 321 Redbud, Rhome, Texas 76078 

Chair Knight referred to City Administrator Northrop, who stated that a Special Use Permit requires ten 
feet from side yard site lines.  Northrop continued by stating that the application meets all requirements 
except  for the ten‐foot side setback.   City Administrator reminded the Commission that a similar case 
came before them in March. 

Motion made  by  Chair  Knight,  seconded  by  Commissioner  Coleman  to  recommend  approval  of  this 
application with a variance of the ten‐foot side setback. 

Chair Knight asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Chair Knight:  Aye 
Commissioner Nerren:  Aye 
Commissioner Coleman:  Aye 
Alternate Commissioner King:  Aye 
Alternate Commissioner Wilson:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Chair Knight voiced  the return of Commissioner Cannon, announced Alternate Commissioner King has 
recused herself and Alternate Commissioner Wilson would remain sited for Agenda Item D. 

D. Discussion  and  any  necessary  action  considering  a  recommendation  to  Council  regarding  a 
proposed Preliminary Plat  for Rolling V Ranch, RVR No. 1 Phases 1‐3, being described as 219.23 
acres,  697  lots,  3.18  lots/AC,  31  open  spaces,  approximately  51.06  AC  out  of  the  James  B. 
Farnsworth Survey, Abstract No. 1417 & 991, Jacob Moffatt Survey, Abstract No. 554, Smith County 
School Land Survey, Abstract No. 743 in the City of Rhome ETJ, Wise County, Texas as requested by 
PMB Rolling V Land, LP 

City Administrator Northrop explained that a plat legally defines a piece of land and this property is located 
within  the City’s Extra Territorial  Jurisdiction  (ETJ).   Northrop continued by stating  that  the City has a 
developer’s agreement in place with the developer and that the plat meets those requirements and also 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 61 of 172



 

October 5, 2020 Planning & Zoning Commission Minutes    Page 4 of 5 

State Law, Statute and Ordinance.  Staff has meet with the developer and recommends that the Planning 
& Zoning Commission recommend approval to the City Council. 

City  Attorney  Adkins  stated  that  there  is  not  a  lot  of  room  to make  changes;  the  approval  of  the 
preliminary plat is a ministerial act – if it meets all of the requirements, which this plat does, you have to 
recommend approval. 

City Administrator Northrop  introduced  Peter  Pincoffs,  PMB, who  gave  a  brief  history  of  the  of  the 
property, provided a list of future projects and addressed questions from the Commission. 

City Engineer Welden stated that the developer has met all requirements for this plat. 

City Attorney Adkins added that there are no legal bases to deny the preliminary plat. 

Mr. Pincoffs provided that construction will be starting in early January and phase 1 should be completed 
within 12 to 15 months with phase 2 being completed shortly thereafter.  

Motion made by Chair Knight, seconded by Commissioner Nerren, to recommend approval of proposed 
Preliminary Plat for Rolling V Ranch, RVR No. 1 Phases 1‐3, being described as 219.23 acres, 697 lots, 3.18 
lots/AC, 31 open spaces, approximately 51.06 AC out of the James B. Farnsworth Survey, Abstract No. 
1417 & 991, Jacob Moffatt Survey, Abstract No. 554, Smith County School Land Survey, Abstract No. 743 
in the City of Rhome ETJ, Wise County, Texas as presented. 

Chair Knight asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Chair Knight:  Aye 
Commissioner Nerren:  Aye 
Commissioner Cannon:  Aye 
Commissioner Coleman:  Against 
Alternate Commissioner Wilson:  Aye 

Motion carried 4‐1‐0 with Commissioners Knight, Cannon, Nerren and Wilson voting for and Commission 
Coleman voting against. 

Northrop shared with the Commission that Council had the same concerns and had those conversations 
with the developer. 
 
Chair Knight voiced the return of Alternate Commissioner King, announced Commissioner Coleman has 
recused himself and Alternate Commissioner Wilson would remain sited for Agenda Item E. 

E. Discussion  and  any  necessary  action  considering  a  recommendation  to  Council  regarding  a 
proposed Preliminary Plat  for Rolling V Ranch, RVR No. 2 Phases 1‐2, being described as 186.19 
acres, 513 lots, 2.76 lots/AC, 68.90 AC, 19 open spaces out of the Smith County School Land Survey, 
Abstract No. 743 in the City of Rhome ETJ, Wise County, Texas as requested by PMB Rolling V Land, 
LP 

City Administrator Northrop stated all requirements for this preliminary plat have also been met, project 
has been reviewed by Staff, including the City Engineer.  This agenda item is also ministerial as the previous 
item. 

Motion made  by  Chair  Knight,  seconded  by  Commissioner  Thomas,  to  recommend  approval  of  the 
proposed Preliminary Plat for Rolling V Ranch, RVR No. 2 Phases 1‐2, being described as 186.19 acres, 513 
lots, 2.76 lots/AC, 68.90 AC, 19 open spaces out of the Smith County School Land Survey, Abstract No. 743 
in the City of Rhome ETJ, Wise County, Texas as presented. 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 62 of 172



 

October 5, 2020 Planning & Zoning Commission Minutes    Page 5 of 5 

Chair Knight asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Chair Knight:  Aye 
Commissioner Nerren:  Aye 
Commissioner Cannon:  Aye 
Alternate Commissioner King:  Against 
Alternate Commissioner Wilson:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Chair Knight voiced the return of Commissioner Coleman and thanked Alternate Commissioner Wilson for 
sitting in. 

 

Future Agenda Items 

No future agenda items were requested; Chair Knight asked if the Commissioners thought of one to please 
email the City Administrator and City Secretary. 
 

Adjourn 

Motion made by Commissioner Cannon, seconded by Commissioner Nerren to adjourn. 

Chair Knight asked for a roll‐call vote: 

 

Motion carried unanimously; meeting adjourned at 6:56pm. 

 
Minutes approved the 2nd day of November 2020. 

 
     

Steve Knight, 
Chair 

  Shannon Montgomery, TRMC 
City Secretary 

 

Chair Knight:  Aye 
Commissioner Nerren:  Aye 
Commissioner Cannon:  Aye 
Commissioner Coleman:  Aye 
Alternate Commissioner King:  Aye 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 63 of 172



AGENDA ITEM - R 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 64 of 172



  Physical Address:  501 South Main Street  

  Mailing Address:  PO Box 228    

Rhome, Texas 76078 
Telephone:  817‐636‐2462  

www.cityofrhome.com | citysecretary@cityofrhome.com  

 

   

"Crossroads to the Metroplex" 

Mayor 
Michelle Pittman 
Di Credico 
 
 
City Council 
 
Mayor Pro‐Tem,  
Place 3 
Elaine Priest 
 
Place 1 
Josh McCabe 
 
Place 2 
Kenny Crenshaw 
 
Place 4 
Sam Eason 
 
Place 5 
Leeanne 
Mackowski 
 
 
 
City 
Administrator 
Cynthia Northrop 
 
City Attorney 
Carvan Adkins 
 
City Secretary 
Shannon 
Montgomery 
 
Fire Chief 
Darrell Fitch 
 
Police Chief 
Sam Love 
 
Public Works 
Director 
Sean Densmore 
 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL SESSION OF THE RHOME CITY COUNCIL  
Meeting Date: Tuesday, October 22, 2020 
Location:  VIA TELEPHONE CONFERENCE 

MEETING START TIME: 6:30 PM 
 

Call to Order and Establish a Quorum  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico  called  the meeting  to order  at 6:30pm,  called  roll,  and  announced  a 
quorum of Council Members present. 

Council Members Present: 
Mayor Michelle Pittman Di Credico 
Mayor Pro Tem Elaine Priest  
Council Member Josh McCabe 

Council Member Kenny Crenshaw 
Council Member Sam Eason 
Council Member Leeanne Mackowski – arrived at 6:34pm 

City Staff Present: 
City Administrator Cynthia Northrop 
City Attorney James Donovan 
City Secretary Shannon Montgomery 

Municipal Court Clerk Kristi Adams 
Police Chief Sam Love 
Public Works Director Sean Densmore 

Public Presentations and Input  

Council received public presentations from the following: 

 Greg Roemer, 2010 California Crossing, Dallas, Texas 75220 (Community Waste Disposal) 

 Jo Ann Wilson, 240 West Second, Rhome, Texas 

 Lisa Ann Wilson, 240 West Second, Rhome, Texas 

 Shirley Mize, 170 Russell Street, Rhome, Texas 

 Jennifer Christine Brewer (Smith), 265 West First Street, Rhome, Texas 
 

Announcements from Mayor and Council Members  

A. November 2020 Events: 
 Early Voting continues through Friday, October 30, 2020 – times and locations are online 

at www.cityofrhome.com  

 Municipal Court Week Proclamation – Week of November 2‐6, 2020 
 Election Day – Tuesday, November 3, 2020 
 Veterans Day – Wednesday, November 11, 2020 – City Offices Closed 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico  listed the November 2020 events and presented Municipal Court Clerk 
Kristi Adams with the Municipal Court Week Proclamation. 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 65 of 172



 
 

October 22, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 5 

Regular Session – Old Business 

B. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding  latest developments for COVID‐19 and mitigation efforts 
and actions within the City  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico stated that on October 21, 2020, the CDC has updated regulations for close contact and that 
Staff is reviewing those regulations for staff and resident safety. 
 
C. Update, discussion, and any necessary action regarding Municipal Complex Project  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico stated that Staff is continuing to work on the Request for Proposals. 
 
D. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding Master Thoroughfare Plan Project  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico shared that the Master Thoroughfare Plan Steering Committee had its third and final meeting 
and the final report will be presented at the November 12, 2020 Council meeting. 
 
E. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding UTA’s report on the Parks Master Plan  

Alan Klein, UTA, presented the draft report of the Parks Master Plan and addressed questions from Council. 
 
F. Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding Water Source/Rate Study  

Jeff James and Kyle Wheldon, Kimley‐Horn, provided a brief update on the status of the Water Source/Rate Study and 
stated that the final report would be presented to Council at the November 12, 2020 Council Meeting.  James listed the 
five potential water suppliers. 
 
Mayor Pittman Di Credico called a short recess due to technical difficulties. 
 
After the short recess, Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a motion to move forward to negotiate with Upper Trinity as a 
water source to the City. 

Motion made by Council Member McCabe, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Priest, to authorize Staff to enter into negotiations 
with Upper Trinity to discuss options of water sourcing to the City of Rhome. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Aye 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
G. Discussion and any necessary action regarding filling vacancies on the Planning & Zoning Commission  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico moved this item to the November 12, 2020 Council Meeting. 
 

Public Hearing 

H. Rhome City Council to conduct a Public Hearing to consider a request for a Carport at property being described as 
Legal: Acres: 0.209, Lot: 2, Blk: 1, Subd: ROLLING HILLS ADDITION also known as 321 Redbud, Rhome, Texas 76078  

Mayor Pittman Di Credico opened the Public Hearing at 7:31pm. 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 66 of 172



 

October 22, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes    Page 3 of 5 

City Secretary Montgomery stated that she received two responses to the 200‐foot property notices: 

 James Humphries – In Favor 

 Juan and Carmen Rodriguez – In Favor 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico opened the Public Hearing to the audience, no one spoke. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico closed the Public Hearing at 7:32pm. 
 

Regular Session – New Business  

I. Discussion and any necessary action regarding a request for a Carport at legal property being Legal: Acres: 0.209, 
Lot: 2, Blk: 1, Subd: ROLLING HILLS ADDITION also known as 321 Redbud, Rhome, Texas 76078 

City Administrator Northrop stated that this item was reviewed by the appropriate Staff, including the City Engineer and 
reminded Council  that  the  requestor was asking  for a variance  to  the  side  setback, which Council approved a  similar 
variance back in March. 

Motion made by Council Member Mackowski, seconded by Council Member McCabe, to approve the carport with the 
variance to the side setback. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Aye 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
J. Discussion  and  any  necessary  action  regarding  the  awarding  of  Solid Waste  Collection  Contract  and  notice  of 

cancellation of existing contract, if applicable 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico listed the Request for Proposals received – Waste Connections, Frontier Waste Solutions and 
Rhino Removal.  Di Credico stated that action needed tonight is to select a company to enter into negotiations and that a 
survey would be completed to allow residents to vote on what rate structure is the best option for them. 

Council entered into a question and answer session with all three companies related to their options and services. 

Motion made by Council Member McCabe to go with Staff recommendation.  Motion died for lack of a second. 

Motion made by Council Member Crenshaw to move forward with Rhino Removal.  Motion died for lack of a second. 

Council convened  into Executive Session at 8:21pm to seek advice from the City Attorney concerning any  item on this 
agenda, to discuss pending and contemplated litigation, or a settlement offer, or to discuss a matter in which the duty of 
the attorney to the City Council under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Board of Texas 
clearly conflicts with Chapter 551. 

Council reconvened into Regular Session at 8:40pm. 

Motion made by Council Member McCabe,  seconded by Council Member Mackowski,  to move  forward with Waste 
Connections. 

 

 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 67 of 172



 

October 22, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes    Page 4 of 5 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Aye 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
K. Discussion and any necessary action regarding amendment to Rolling V pre‐development and services agreement 

with PMB Capital 

City Attorney Adkins asked that the Mayor move to the next agenda item and move back into Executive Session at the end 
of the meeting. 
 
L. Discussion and any necessary action regarding traffic concerns along Main Street and BC Rhome 

Council discussed the traffic concerns along Main Street and BC Rhome, Mayor Pittman Di Credico stated that some of 
these concerns have been discussed with the Master Thoroughfare Steering Committee and TxDot.  The final report from 
the Master Thoroughfare Steering Committee will address some of the concerns. 
 
M. Discussion  and  any  necessary  action  regarding  submitting  request  for  Coronavirus  Relief  Funds  (CRF) 

reimbursement and authorizing the Mayor to expend funds for the City’s remaining allotment 

Motion made by Council Member Mackowski, seconded by Council Member Eason, to authorize the Mayor to submit a 
request a request for Coronavirus Relief Funds reimbursement and to expend funds for the City’s remaining allotment. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Aye 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Consent Agenda  

N. Minutes of City Council Special Session dated October 13, 2020 

O. Interlocal Agreement with Wise County for Road Repairs 

Motion made by Council Member McCabe, seconded by Council Member Crenshaw to approve the consent agenda as 
presented. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Aye 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 68 of 172



 

October 22, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes    Page 5 of 5 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico reconvened into Executive Session at 9:04pm. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico reconvened into Regular Session at 9:18pm. 
 
K. Discussion and any necessary action regarding amendment to Rolling V pre‐development and services agreement 

with PMB Capital 

Motion made by Council Member Eason, seconded by Council Member Crenshaw, to authorize the Mayor to sign the 
agreement through to the November 12, 2020 Council Meeting. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye 
Council Member Crenshaw:  Aye 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Future Agenda Items  

Mayor Pro Tem Priest asked for a facilities list, including any needs, whether it be custodial, yard care, plumbing, etc. 
 

Adjourn  

Motion made by Council Member McCabe, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Priest, to adjourn. 

Mayor Pittman Di Credico asked for a roll‐call vote: 

Council Member McCabe:  Aye   
Council Member Crenshaw:  Aye 
Mayor Pro‐Tem Priest:  Aye 
Council Member Eason:  Aye 
Council Member Mackowski:  Aye 

Motion carried unanimously; meeting adjourned at 9:22pm. 

 
Minutes approved the 12th day of November 2020. 
 
 
 
     

Jo Ann Wilson, 
Mayor  

  Shannon Montgomery, TRMC 
City Secretary 

 

 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 69 of 172



AGENDA ITEM - V 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 70 of 172



 
 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:  November 12 

Department: Administration            Contact: Cynthia Northrop 

Agenda Item:  

V.   Discussion and any necessary action regarding Expectations for the upcoming Transition Period with 

newly Elected Officials 

Type of Item:   Other 

Summary‐Background: In July 2020 City Council adopted a Resolution as a first step in implementing a 

City Council Education/Training policy. Staff developed a Council Orientation Handbook and base 

training schedule. With two new Council Members sworn in on November 12, 2020, the ‘Open Meetings 

Act’ training is required and free; link to online training video/directions: 

https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/open‐government/open‐meetings‐act‐training ).  

Additionally, TML has an online virtual workshop available for ‘Newly Elected Officials’ for $95 (link: 

https://gumroad.com/l/cRYBzI ).  

Finally, the Texas Attorney General has several free online webinars available:  

1. Basics of the Public Information Act (December 3, 2020 from 2 – 5 pm) 

2. Beyond Basics of Open Government (December 9, 2020 from 2 – 5 pm) 

Registration is available here: https://events.texasattorneygeneral.gov/og2020/595756  

 

Funding Expected:   Budgeted Item: Yes   

Funding Account:  10‐60890‐10 Education/Training 

 

Supporting Documents attached: Yes 

 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 71 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 72 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 73 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 74 of 172



AGENDA ITEM - X 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 75 of 172



 
 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:  November 12, 2020 

Department:   Administration            Contact: Cynthia Northrop 

Agenda Item:  

X.   Discussion  and  any  necessary  action  regarding  New  Plan  for  office  space  for  City  Hall,  Police 

Department,  meeting  facilities  for  City  Council,  Municipal  Court,  Planning  &  Zoning,  Parks  & 

Recreation as well as Community Center facilities upgrades 

Type of Item:   Discussion & Direction 

Summary‐Background:  In  light of the recent Municipal Complex – Old School renovation bond failure, 

there are current space constraints, and facility/maintenance items that need to be addressed, evaluated 

and planned. Some of the items for discussion include office space constraints, substandard facility and 

non‐compliance with ADA accessibility requirements and budgetary impact.  

 

Funding Expected:  

Funding Account:   

Legal Review Required:  

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 76 of 172



AGENDA ITEM - Y 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 77 of 172



 
 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:  November 12, 2020 

Department:   Administration            Contact: Cynthia Northrop 

Agenda Item:  

Y.   Update, discussion and any necessary action regarding upcoming proposed Ordinance amendments 

Type of Item:   Ordinance and Discussion & Direction 

Summary‐Background: Council has previously directed staff to review the Code of Ordinances for clean‐

up items and updates as needed on an ongoing basis. Staff is proposing a standing quarterly agenda item 

beginning in December to review, research and bring forward recommended action items.  Some of the 

clean‐up items to be proposed in December include clarification on mobile food units (Chapter 6, Health 

& Sanitation and Chapter 14 ‐ Zoning, (Use Chart), Chapter 14, Zoning Use Chart (gaining consistency), 

Right‐of‐Way Management (Chapter 13 – Utilities), Liquid Waste and Maintenance Bond items.  

 

Funding Expected:    

Funding Account:   

Legal Review Required:  Required    

 

Supporting Documents attached:  

 

Recommendation:  Information  only.  If  Councilmembers  have  additional  items,  provided  to  City 

Administrator to include in the ongoing review. 

 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 78 of 172



AGENDA ITEM - Z 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 79 of 172



 
 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:  November 12, 2020 

Department:   Administration            Contact: Cynthia Northrop 

Agenda Item:  

Z.   Discussion and any necessary action regarding Ordinance removing the two alternate positions on 

the Planning & Zoning Commission  

Type of Item:   Ordinance and Discussion & Direction   

Summary‐Background:  In  light of  the current transitions occurring,  it may be a good  time  to consider 

doing away with alternate members on the Planning & Zoning Commission. The original purpose/history 

in adding alternates was the  lack of a quorum for meetings. For the past several years attendance and 

having a quorum  for meetings has not been a problem.  In a  review of other  cities, while  some have 

alternate members, many do not. Removing alternates would streamline the process for staff and reduce 

confusion during meetings on which P&Z members are seated and voting.    

Should Council determine to discontinue using alternates, it will be included in the Ordinance updates for 

December discussed in a previous agenda item and will require a public notice. 

 

Funding Expected:  

Funding Account:   

Legal Review Required:   

Recommendation: Determine to remove alternates or continue utilizing alternates 

 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 80 of 172



AGENDA ITEMS AA 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 81 of 172



 
 

 

Agenda Commentary 
 

Meeting Date:  Thursday, November 12, 2020 

Department:  Administration            Contact:  Shannon Montgomery 

Agenda Item:  

AA.  Discussion and any necessary action regarding filling vacancies on the Planning & Zoning Commission 

Type of Item:   Discussion & Direction   

Summary‐Background:  

There are two vacancies on the Planning & Zoning Commission.   The City began advertising on Friday, 

October 16, 2020.  The City has received two application thus far and alternate Kristi King has expressed 

her interest in moving to a seated position. 

 

Alternate 2, Jo Ann Wilson is no longer on the Commission due to being elected Mayor. 

 

Funding Expected:    

Funding Account:   

Legal Review Required:   

Engineering Review: 

 

Supporting Documents attached:  

Applications received since advertising began. 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 82 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 83 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 84 of 172



AGENDA ITEMS BB 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 85 of 172



 
 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:  Thursday, November 12, 2020 

Department:   Administration            Contact:  Shannon Montgomery 

Agenda Item:   

BB. Discussion and any necessary action regarding online Code of Ordinances Services 

Type of Item:   Contract/Agreement   

 

Summary‐Background: 

The City started researching codification services and found that many cities use Municode:  

1. Municode is less expensive and would save money 

2. Municode would allow for quicker updates to the Code as all updates to the Code of Ordinance 

would  be  done  in‐house,  within  one  week  of  Ordinance  approval;  current  update  time  is 

quarterly. 

 

Funding Expected:   Expenditure, Budgeted   

Funding Account:  10‐61600‐10 Dues & Subscriptions 

Legal Review Required: Required    

Recommendation:  

Staff recommendation is to move forward with Municode to increase efficiencies and save money. 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 86 of 172



AGENDA ITEMS CC 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 87 of 172



 
 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:  November 12, 2020 

Department: Administration          Contact: Cynthia Northrop 

Agenda Item:  

CC. Discussion and any necessary action regarding Solid Waste Collection Contract options for service 

Type of Item:   Contract/Agreement   

Summary‐Background: At the last City Council meeting, Counicl awarded the bid to Waste Connections 

with a directive to gain feedback via survey from residents on service preferences (Options WC provided 

in the propoposal). Council has been provided the background material including: 1.) Raw Survey Data, 

2.) Results, 3.) Waste Connection proposal 4.) Sample contract (minus specifics of which option).  

We  received 28  responses and a majority vote  for Option 1 as 1st choice. Keep  in mind  the  following 

components across each option:  

1. Includes a 95‐gallon cart: This is a much larger container than residents have been accustomed to 

and may accommodate and/or be equal to the amount of trash most residents dispose of with 

twice weekly service. 

2. If a curbside recycling component is selected, it would also also include a 65‐gallon cart. 

3. Quarterly curbside hazardous waste is included in all options 

Funding Expected:  Budgeted Item: Yes  

Legal Review Required:  Required    

Supporting Documents attached: blank survey 

 

Recommendation: Select option 1,2, or 3 and authorize staff to execute the contract 

 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 88 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 89 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 90 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 91 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 92 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 93 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 94 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 95 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 96 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 97 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 98 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 99 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 100 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 101 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 102 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 103 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 104 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 105 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 106 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 107 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 108 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 109 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 110 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 111 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 112 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 113 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 114 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 115 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 116 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 117 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 118 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 119 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 120 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 121 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 122 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 123 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 124 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 125 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 126 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 127 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 128 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 129 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 130 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 131 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 132 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 133 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 134 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 135 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 136 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 137 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 138 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 139 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 140 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 141 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 142 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 143 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 144 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 145 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 146 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 147 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 148 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 149 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 150 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 151 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 152 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 153 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 154 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 155 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 156 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 157 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 158 of 172



November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 159 of 172



 

 

 

 

 

 

Last night, Thursday, October 22, 2020, the Rhome City Council awarded the Solid Waste Contract to Waste 
Connections. All three solid waste proposers (Frontier Waste, Rhino Removal and Waste Connections) 
submitted several potential options.  

Now that the contract has been awarded to Waste Connections the Mayor and Councilmembers would like to 
get feedback from the citizens on what is important to them as they consider the best option for Rhome 
residents. Please take a moment to complete this survey and email it back cityhall@cityofrhome.com, drop it 
by the office, or mail it to P.O. Box 228, Rhome, Texas 76078. This survey will remain open through Friday, 
October 30, 2020, close of business. All responses must be received by 4 p.m., Friday, October 30, 2020. 

 

PLEASE NOTE: All pricing options INCLUDE sales tax. 

Name: ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address: __________________________________________________________________________________ 

Email: ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Please include your email if you would like to receive the upcoming monthly City Newsletter keeping you 
informed with city news, events, notifications, etc. 

 

1. When considering a solid waste provider, please rank the following items in terms of what is most 
important to you.  
Rating scale is 1-5 with 1 being most important and 5 being the least important 

_____Price 
_____Customer Service 
_____Curbside recycling 
_____Curbside hazardous waste disposal 
_____How many days a week 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 160 of 172

mailto:cityhall@cityofrhome.com


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Council may only choose ONE option that will be the same for ALL residents and want 
your input as they evaluate the best option for all. 

 

__________ (Rank 1st, 2nd, 3rd choice) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

____________ (Rank 1st, 2nd, 3rd choice) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

__________ (Rank 1st, 2nd, 3rd choice) 

Current Service   $17.54 

2 times per week pick-up 
No curbside recycling 
No trash cart provided 
Take all curbside bulk on pick-up days 
No hazardous waste collection 

Option 1 (closest to same service)  $13.05 

2 times per week pick-up 
No curbside recycling 
95 Gallon Trash cart provided 
Quarterly bulk/brush 
Quarterly curbside hazardous waste collection 
 

Option 2     $18.14 

1 time per week pick-up 
Curbside recycling  
95 Gallon Trash Cart provided 
Quarterly bulk/brush 
Quarterly curbside hazardous waste collection 
 

Option 3    $20.63 

2 times per week pick-up 
Curbside recycling  
95 Gallon Trash cart provided 
Quarterly bulk/brush 
Quarterly curbside hazardous waste collection 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 161 of 172



 1 2 3 4 5 

PRICE 14/50% 5 6 1 2 

CUSTOMER 
SERVICE 

8 7 9/35% 1 1 

CURBSIDE 
RECYCLING 

3 3 7 9/36% 4 

DAYS PER 
WEEK 

3 11/41% 3 5 4 

CURBSIDE 
HAZARDOUS 

0 1 1 9/36% 16/59% 

 

PRICE     Ranked highest with 50% 

DAYS PER WEEK  Ranked second highest with 41% 

CUSTOMER SERVICE  Ranked third highest with 35% 

RECYCLING & HAZARDOUS Tied for fourth highest with 35% 

CURBSIDE   Ranked last with 59% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 162 of 172



OPTIONS FIRST CHOICE 
  

OPTION 1 13 (45%) 

OPTION 3 10 

OPTION 2 6 

 SECOND CHOICE 

OPTION 2 13 (46%) 

OPTION 3 8 

OPTION 1 7 

 THIRD CHOICE 

OPTION 1 10 (37%) 

OPTION 3 9 

OPTION 2 8 

 

OPTION 1  Received the majority votes for people’s first choice  

OPTION 2  Received the majority votes for people’s second choice 

OPTION 1 Received the majority votes for people’s third choice 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 163 of 172



Solid Waste Survey Summary - RESULTS 11.3.2020 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Option 1 Option 3 Option 2

FIRST CHOICE - OPTION 1

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Option 2 Option 3 Option 1

SECOND CHOICE - OPTION 2

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Option 1 Option 3 Option 2

THIRD CHOICE - OPTION 1

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 164 of 172



Solid Waste Survey Summary - RESULTS 11.3.2020 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Option 1 (closest to same service)  $13.05 

2 times per week pick-up 
No curbside recycling 
95 Gallon Trash cart provided 
Quarterly bulk/brush 
Quarterly curbside hazardous waste collection 
 

Option 2     $18.14 

1 time per week pick-up 
Curbside recycling  
95 Gallon Trash Cart provided 
Quarterly bulk/brush 
Quarterly curbside hazardous waste collection 
 

Option 3    $20.63 

2 times per week pick-up 
Curbside recycling  
95 Gallon Trash cart provided 
Quarterly bulk/brush 
Quarterly curbside hazardous waste collection 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 165 of 172



Solid Waste Survey Summary - RESULTS 11.3.2020 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Price Ranked #1 

Price Days per week Customer Service Curbside recycling Curbside hazardous

Days Per Week Ranked #2

Price Days per week Customer Service Curbside recycling Curbside hazardous

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 166 of 172



Solid Waste Survey Summary - RESULTS 11.3.2020 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Customer Service Ranked #3

Price Days per week Customer Service Curbside recycling Curbside hazardous

Curbside Recyling & Hazardous Waste Collection tied for Ranking 
#4

Price Days per week Customer Service Curbside recycling Curbside hazardous

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 167 of 172



Solid Waste Survey Summary - RESULTS 11.3.2020 
 
 
 

 

Curbside Hazardous Collection came in 
last Ranking #5

Price 1 Days per week 5 Customer Service 1 Curbside recycling 9 Curbside hazardous 9

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 168 of 172



AGENDA ITEMS DD 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 169 of 172



 
 

 

Agenda Commentary 

 

Meeting Date:  November 12, 2020 

Department:   Administration        Contact: Cynthia Northrop 

Agenda Item:  

DD. Discussion and any necessary action regarding contract for Permitting & Code Compliance Software 

Type of Item:   Contract/Agreement 

Summary‐Background: Previously Council authorized staff to move forward and negotiate a contract with 

a  selected Permitting & Code Enforcement  software  vendor. After  researching and  reviewing  several 

vendor options a selection was made. While initially vetted, it was discovered that the software did not 

integrate easily with our financial software. Going back and reviewing prior vendors another vendor that 

more  easily  integrates with  our  financial  software  has  been  selected.    Integration with  our  financial 

software  is critical to ensuring efficiencies and streamlining the  internal processing. This  is a budgeted 

item and the selected vendor comes in with a small cost‐savings.  

 

Funding Expected:  Budgeted Item: Yes  

Legal Review Required:   Required  Completed: Yes 

Recommendation:  Authorize  staff  to  execute  the  contract  with  iWorq  for  the  Permitting  &  Code 

Compliance software  

 

 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 170 of 172



AGENDA ITEMS EE 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 171 of 172



Agenda Commentary 

Meeting Date:  Thursday, November 12, 2020 

Department:   Administration  Contact:  Shannon Montgomery 

Agenda Item:   

EE. Discussion and any necessary action regarding contract for City Hall Copier/Printer 

Type of Item:   X Contract/Agreement   

Summary‐Background:  

Council  authorized  Staff  to  research  the  options  of  new  copier/printer  at  the May  28,  2020  Council 

Meeting. 

Current  copier/printer  at City Hall  is  an older machine, has equipment  issues  that will  require  costly 

repairs.  The current monthly lease is $257.60, plus consumables – including toner.  The customer service 

from Konica Minolta has been lacking throughout lease period. 

Proposed Xerox agreement is $149.74, which includes all consumables, including toner and staples, and 

15,000  black  &  white  pages  per  month.    Color  prints  are  also  less  expensive  than  current  copier 

agreement. 

Funding Expected:   Expenditure 

Budgeted Item:   Yes 

Funding Account:  10‐61600‐10 Dues & Subscriptions

Legal Review Required: Required

Recommendation:  

Staff recommends terminating existing lease with Konica Minolta and moving forward with Xerox 

Service Agreement 

November 12, 2020 Council Agenda Packet Page 172 of 172


	Council Agenda 11 12 20 FINAL Virtual
	AGENDA ITEM C
	AGENDA ITEM H
	AGENDA ITEM I
	AGENDA ITEM J
	AGENDA ITEM L
	AGENDA ITEM M
	AGENDA ITEM P
	AGENDA ITEM Q
	AGENDA ITEM R
	AGENDA ITEM V
	AGENDA ITEM X
	AGENDA ITEM Y
	AGENDA ITEM Z
	AGENDA ITEM AA
	AGENDA ITEM BB
	AGENDA ITEM CC
	AGENDA ITEM DD
	AGENDA ITEM EE



